
November 22, 2016 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

MEETING PACKET 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 1 of 20



 

November 22, 2016 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

PRE-MEETING 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 2 of 20



Planning Commission Briefing Agenda 
November 22, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 

Members 
Greg Wasinger, Chairman 

Bruce Freeman, Vice-Chairman 
Cecil Pierce 

Jes Walker-Wyse 
Hal Hovey 

Alyssa Merriman 
Erik Mann 

1. Council Action Update
Ø Ordinance 1780 Model Homes approved 11/15/2016
Ø Ordinance 1784 LID approved 11/15/2016 (made effective December 31, 2016)
Ø Council requested that LID be noted on the legislative priorities list

2. Island County Planning Commission Feedback
Ø Feel free to email Lisa F your feedback on the Island County training sessions; we

will compile and make the comments anonymous and provide to Island County to 
help improve future training offered 

3. Department of Commerce – Planning Training January 17, 2017
Ø See following flyer – please consider attending and RSVP to Lisa F by Jan 10

4. Current Planning
Ø Upcoming code amendments:

o Sign Code next update scheduled for January 2017, hearing TBD

5. Long Range Planning
Ø 2016 Yearly Report to City Council February 2017 Meeting
Ø County Comprehensive Plan, CWPP and Inter-local Agreement

6. Planning Commission questions and comments
Ø Agenda Items
Ø General

7. Planning Commission Upcoming Calendar
Ø December regular PC Meeting date is scheduled for Tuesday, December 13th

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 3 of 20



 2016 - 2017
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
PENDING AGENDA

Order Item Staff Public 
Hearing?

CC Anticipated 
Dates Notes

1 Marin Woods Ray Yes 12/20/2016 From 09/27

1 Sign Code Ray No
2 2017 Comp Plan Amend. Cac Yes March 2017 Preliminary docket
3 Critical Areas Dennis No

1 2016 Yearly Report to CC Steve Yes March 2017

December 13, 2016

January 24, 2017

February 28, 2017

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 4 of 20



 

 
  
 

   
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

A Short Course on Local Planning 
Coupeville Recreation Hall, 901 NW Alexander Street, Coupeville, WA 98239 

Thursday, January 19, 2017, 6:15 – 9:15 p.m.  
Hosted by Island County 

 
Agenda: 

6:15– 6:30  WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS………………………………………………..………………Commerce 

6:30 – 7:00 THE LEGAL BASIS OF PLANNING IN WASHINGTON………Phil Olbrechts, Attorney at Law 

The statutory basis of planning in Washington State, and early planning statutes.  
Constitutional issues in land use planning.   

7:00 - 7:30 COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING BASICS…….............................……….Valerie Smith, Planner 
What is planning, and why is it important?  Overview of the Growth Management Act 
requirements for local planning.  Ideas and tools for implementing and updating the 
comprehensive plan.  

 
7:30 – 7:40  BREAK 
 
7:40 – 8:10 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES……………………………………………………Brad Johnson, Planner 

Roles and responsibilities in the planning process.  Legislative vs quasi-judicial decisions, 
tips for encouraging public involvement, best practices for effective meetings. 

 
8:10- 8:50  OPEN GOVERNMENT LAWS ……………………………………....Phil Olbrechts, Attorney at Law 

Open Public Meetings Act and Introduction to the Public Records Act.  This training meets 
the requirements of RCW 42.30.205  requiring every member of a governing body to take 
Open Public Meetings Act training within 90 days of taking an official role, and every four 
years thereafter, as long as they remain in that role.  Attendees will receive a certificate of 
training. 

8:50-9:15  QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS………………………………………………………………………..……….All 

Planning Association 
   of Washington 
  

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 5 of 20



 
REGISTRATION:  Please register by January 12, 2017, by sending an email with your name, organization 
and title (if applicable) and the location of the short course you wish to attend to 
shortcourse@commerce.wa.gov or by leaving the same information at 360 725-3064. Registration is not 
required, but helps for planning purposes; all will be welcome at the event.  There is no cost to attend. 
 
SEE ALL UPCOMING IN PERSON COURSES AND VIDEO OPTIONS ON THE SHORT COURSE WEB PAGE AT:  
www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/short-course/.  Agendas and 
presentations for past courses will be on the web site for the calendar year.   
 
MAP OF LOCATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
City elected officials will earn 3 CML credits in Community Planning and Development 

County elected officials will receive 2 core credits towards Certified Public Official Training 
For WCIA members, attendance at the Short Course provides COMPACT training credit 

For RMSA members, the Short Course meets the requirements of the land use advisory member standards 
For WSBA members, the video series provides 1 CLE Legal Credit, and 0.75 Other (Activity # 1011672) 

 

 

 
  

A Short Course on Local Planning:  Training citizen planners since 1977 
 

The Short Course is an opportunity for planning commissioners, local government staff, elected officials, and 
community members to learn about our state’s legal framework for planning, comprehensive planning and 

community development processes, and public involvement in the planning process. 
 

   www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/short-course/           360.725.3064 
Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 6 of 20

http://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/
lfelix
Typewritten Text
**

lfelix
Typewritten Text
**please email Lisa F instead and by January 10 and she will compile list to send RSVP - thank you!



 
 

LOCAL HOST:  Hillar West, Planning Director, Island County   
    h.west@co.island.wa.us    360.678.7814 
 
 
MODERATOR:  Valerie Smith, Senior Planner, Washington State Department of Commerce 
    Valerie.smith@commerce.wa.gov  360.725.3062 
 
PRESENTERS:  Phil Olbrechts, Attorney at Law,  Olbrechts and Associates PLLC    

olbrechtslaw@gmail.com      360.691.1078 
 

Brad Johnson, Senior Planner, City of Burlington  
360-755-9717   bradmj@burlingtonwa.gov  

 
 

ADDITIONAL TRAINING AND EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES IN WASHINGTON 

Department of Commerce, Growth Management Services  http://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-
communities/growth-management/.  See the Short Course Manual and Videos under the “Short Course on 
Local Planning” Key Topic. 

Municipal Research and Services Center of Washington at www.mrsc.org:  See A Planner’s Pocket Reference 
at. www.mrsc.org/subjects/planning/PocketRef.aspx, which includes glossaries, web links for land use, 
environment, housing, census, economics, transportation, technical tools, model codes, and land use law. 

Washington State Office of the Attorney General Trainings on Open Government, Open Public Meetings Act 
and Public Records Act training at www.atg.wa.gov/OpenGovernmentTraining.aspx. 
 

 

OUR SHORT COURSE PARTNERS 

Planning Association of Washington (PAW) is a statewide, grass-roots, non-profit incorporated in 1963, with 
the mission to “provide unbiased practical planning education to the citizens of Washington State”. PAW 
created the Short Course on Local Planning and is a founding partner. www.planningpaw.org Partner since 
1980. 
 

The Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA) is a liability insurance risk pool which supports member risk 
management through education. WCIA encourages their members to attend the Short Course on Local Planning 
because it is recognized as a tool for reducing land-use liability. www.wciapool.org/ Partner since 2009. 
 

Washington Chapter of the American Planning Association (WA-APA)   www.washington-apa.org/ Partner 
since 2014. 

Association of Washington Cities (AWC) and the Risk Management Services Agency (RMSA) 
www.awcnet.org/ and www.awcnet.org/PropertyLiability.aspx   See  GMA Comp Plan Conversation Starter 
videos. www.awcnet.org/ResourcesResearch/GMACompPlanConversationStarters.aspx Partners since 2015. 

 
 

A Short Course on Local Planning:  Training citizen planners since 1977 
 

www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/     360.725.3064 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 7 of 20

mailto:h.west@co.island.wa.us
mailto:Valerie.smith@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:olbrechtslaw@gmail.com
mailto:bradmj@burlingtonwa.gov
http://www.mrsc.org/
http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/planning/PocketRef.aspx
http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/planning/PocketRef.aspx
http://www.atg.wa.gov/OpenGovernmentTraining.aspx
http://www.planningpaw.org/
http://www.wciapool.org/
http://www.washington-apa.org/
https://www.awcnet.org/
https://www.awcnet.org/PropertyLiability.aspx
http://www.awcnet.org/ResourcesResearch/GMACompPlanConversationStarters.aspx
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/


PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

November 22, 2016 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 8 of 20



CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION November 22, 2016 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 
 
1. ROLL CALL: WASINGER   _______    FREEMAN   _______   

PIERCE   _______ MANN   _______         
 MERRIMAN  _______  HOVEY   _______ 

   WALKER-WYSE  _______             
 
2. Approval of Minutes –  October 25, 2016 Regular Business Meeting and  

      November 9, 2016 Special Meeting 
 

3. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not 
otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting. 

 
4. Public Meetings: 

 
A. SIGN CODE – Public Meeting 

Staff will continue to brief the Planning Commission on proposed changes to the sign 
code.  These changes are in response to recent court decisions regarding the regulation 
of signage, both temporary and permanent.  Rather than attempting to piecemeal code 
changes over time, Staff is working on wholesale changes to the sign code by categorizing 
signs in a form-based manner.   
 

B. ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – Public Meeting 
In accordance with OHMC 18.15.040, the City is working on its annual Comprehensive 
Plan amendment process.  Staff will continue the discussion with the Planning 
Commission on items to consider for the 2017 amendments and the amendment process. 

 
 

5. Next Regular Business Meeting December 13, 2016 
 

6. Adjournment 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 9 of 20



MINUTES 

 

October 25, 2016 & 

November 9, 2016  

Special Meeting 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 10 of 20



 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 25, 2016 DRAFT 

Page 1 of 3 
 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
October 25, 2016 at 7:30 PM 

 
1. Roll Call 

 
Chairman Wasinger called the meeting to order at 7:29 PM.  
 
2. Approval of Minutes – September 27, 2016 
 
Motion: Commissioner Walker-Wyse moved to approve the September 27, 2016 minutes as 
presented. Second: Commissioner Hovey seconded the motion.  With all in favor, the motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
3. Public Comment:  There were no comments from the public nor members of the public 
present. 
 
4. Public Hearings and Meetings 
  

A. MARIN WOODS PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT (PRD) AND 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Public Hearing 

This is a continuation of the Public Hearing that began at the Planning Commission Meeting on 
September 27, 2016.  Staff presented a recommendation to continue this hearing to the 
December 13, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Hovey moved to continue Marin Woods subdivision hearing until the 
December 13, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting. Second: Commissioner Pierce seconded.  
Commissioner Walker-Wyse abstained.  With all in favor, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

B. MODEL HOMES CODE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
This Public Hearing was rescheduled from the September 27, 2016 Planning Commission 
Meeting. The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider a code amendment 
to allow for the construction of a limited number of model homes within a subdivision before that 
subdivision’s final plat has been approved.   
 
Chairman Wasinger opened the public hearing at 7:32 PM. 
 
Staff Presentation:  
Ray Lindenburg, Associate Planner, presented the Staff Report and Attachments to the Planning 
Commission.  Mr. Lindenburg explained Draft Ordinance 1780, to add Chapter 21.100 entitled 
“Model Homes” to the existing Title 21 “Subdivisions” of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  

Present: Staff Present: 
Greg Wasinger (Chair) 
Cecil Pierce  
Jes Walker-Wyse 
Hal Hovey 
Alyssa Merriman 
Erik Mann 
 
Absent: 
Bruce Freeman (Vice Chair) 

Steve Powers, Development Services Director 
Dennis Lefevre, Senior Planner 
Ray Lindenburg, Associate Planner 
Brad Gluth, Civil Engineer 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 11 of 20



 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 25, 2016 DRAFT 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Public Comment 
Chairman Wasinger asked for any comments from the public.  With no public comments 
presented, Chairman Wasinger closed the public hearing at 7:36 PM. 
 
Commissioner Questions 
The Commissioners presented multiple questions to clarify the financial securities required and 
when the certificates of occupancy could be issued for the model homes.  Staff clarified that the 
developer will be required to provide 150% of the cost of restoration to the original condition as a 
financial security.  Restoration to the original condition would include removal of all improvements, 
construction, roads, etc.  The existing code that allows for the issuance of occupancy and sale of 
one model home prior to final plat approval will remain the same. The additional model homes 
allowed to be built will not be granted occupancy until after final plat approval. Showing of the 
homes prior to the certificate of occupancy being issued will be allowed. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Hovey moved to recommend approval of draft Ordinance No. 1780 to the 
City Council. Second: Commissioner Merriman seconded.  With all in favor, the motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

C. LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT – Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission opened a public hearing to consider code amendments to incorporate 
low impact development as a required, when feasible, method for treating and infiltrating 
stormwater.  
 
Chairman Wasinger opened the public hearing at 7:41 PM. 
 
Staff Presentation: 
Brad Gluth and Dennis Lefevre presented draft Ordinance No. 1784, to incorporate low impact 
development (LID) regulations as required by the Department of Ecology into the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code. Staff explained how the LID requirements would apply to new developments and 
new construction on existing lots. Staff recommended the Planning Commission continue the 
hearing until a Special Meeting on November 9, 2016. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairman Wasinger asked for any comments from the public.  There were no public comments 
presented. 
 
Commissioner Questions 
The Commissioners presented multiple questions to staff, and paid particular attention to types 
of surfaces required for new developments, and how LID will impact remodels of existing homes. 
 
Chairman Wasinger acknowledged that Commissioner Freeman joined the meeting at 8:03 PM.  
Chairman Wasinger continued the hearing on low impact development requirements and draft 
Ordinance No. 1784 until the November 9, 2016 Special Meeting. 
 

D. SIGN CODE – Public Meeting 
The Planning Commission was briefed on proposed changes to the sign code.  Rather than 
attempting to piecemeal code changes over time, Staff is working on wholesale changes to the 
sign code by categorizing signs in a form-based manner.  These changes are in response to 
recent court decisions regarding the regulation of signage, both temporary and permanent. 
 
Staff Presentation: 
Mr. Lindenburg presented an overview of proposed conceptual changes to the sign code.  Staff’s 
suggestion is that the new code incorporate a graphic matrix to assist the public in ease of 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 12 of 20



 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 25, 2016 DRAFT 

Page 3 of 3 
 

readability and interpreting the code.  Signs were presented visually described by form, not by 
content, and Mr. Lindenburg explained this shift in thinking is brought about by recent Supreme 
Court cases, such as Reed vs. Town of Gilbert. 
 

E. ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – Public Meeting 
In accordance with OHMC 18.15.040, the City is initiating its annual Comprehensive Plan 
amendment process.  Staff initiated a discussion with the Planning Commission on items to 
consider for the 2017 amendments. 
 
Staff Presentation 
Steve Powers explained the Comprehensive Plan Amendment process, and that the initial stages 
have begun with public advertisement for applications, due December 1, 2016.  Staff will bring 
forth amendments that they are aware of, including the economic development element of the 
Comprehensive Plan, and the Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan.  Staff is open to 
suggestions to improve the advertising process for the Comprehensive Plan Amendment for 
2017. 
 
5.  Special Meeting scheduled for November 9, 2016  

6. Next regular meeting scheduled for November 22, 2016 

Chairman Wasinger adjourned the meeting at 8:42 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Lisa Felix 
Administrative Assistant 
Development Services 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 13 of 20



 

Planning Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
November 9, 2016 DRAFT 

Page 1 of 2 
 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission 

Special Meeting Minutes 
November 9, 2016 at 7:00 PM 

 
1. Roll Call 

 
Chairman Wasinger called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  
 
2. LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT – Public Hearing 
This is a continuation of the Public Hearing that began at the Planning Commission Meeting on 
October 25, 2016, to consider code amendments to incorporate low impact development as a 
required, when feasible, method for treating and infiltrating stormwater.  
 
Staff Presentation 
Dennis Lefevre presented the Staff Report and Attachments, including the draft Ordinance No. 
1784, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, AMENDING OAK 
HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 11, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS; TITLE 12, 
STORMWATER; TITLE 17, BUILDINGS; TITLE 19, ZONING; TITLE 20, ENVIRONMENT; AND, 
TITLE 21, SUBDIVISIONS TO INCORPORATE AND REQUIRE LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT 
PRINCIPLES AND BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Mr. Lefevre presented a spreadsheet to show how the code has been amended to be consistent 
with the Department of Ecology toolkit and how Staff addressed gaps and conflicts in the existing 
code.  A summary of the changes to the code since the initial handbook presentation at the 
October 19, 2016 Joint City Council Workshop was reviewed.  There is one notable change since 
the publication of the Staff Report and draft Ordinance No. 1784: Staff has since recommended 
removal of the definition of “creek” in Section Thirty-Nine of the draft Ordinance. The definition 
was in conflict with the Department of Fish and Wildlife’s definition. 
 
Brad Gluth presented graphics to illustrate the creation of parking flexibility in subdivisions to 
assist developers with meeting the LID requirements for reduction of impervious surfaces. 
 
Commissioner Questions 
The Commissioners asked for clarification of the subdivision parking options, soil sampling and 
compatibility on the island, LID impact on remodels, and revised building height requirements. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairman Wasinger continued the public hearing and asked for any comments from the public.  
With no public comments presented nor members of the public present, Chairman Wasinger 
closed the public hearing at 7:36 PM. 

Present: Staff Present: 
Greg Wasinger (Chair) 
Bruce Freeman (Vice Chair) 
Jes Walker-Wyse 
Hal Hovey 
Alyssa Merriman 
Erik Mann 
 
Absent: 
Cecil Pierce  

Steve Powers, Development Services Director 
Dennis Lefevre, Senior Planner 
Ray Lindenburg, Associate Planner 
Brad Gluth, Civil Engineer 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 14 of 20



 

Planning Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
November 9, 2016 DRAFT 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Motion: Commissioner Walker-Wyse moved to recommend approval to the City Council of 
Ordinance No. 1784 incorporating low impact development best management practices and 
principles into the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, with the exception of Section Thirty-Nine in 
reference to creeks. Second: Commissioner Mann seconded. With all in favor, the motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
The next regular Planning Commission business meeting is scheduled for November 22, 2016. 
 
Chairman Wasinger adjourned the meeting at 7:39 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Lisa Felix 
Administrative Assistant 
Development Services 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 15 of 20



SIGN CODE AMENDMENT 

 

 

 

 

Public Meeting 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 16 of 20



1 

 Date:  November 16, 2016 
 Subject:  Sign Code Amendment, 

continued 
 
  
From: Ray Lindenburg, Associate Planner, Development Services Department 
 
  
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this presentation is to show the proposed graphics that will represent the various sign 
types that will be included in the sign type matrix.  From this discussion, staff hopes to offer a more 
complete vision of what the sign matrix will achieve, with a fully-realized and functional matrix to 
follow at a future Planning Commission meeting.   
 
DISCUSSION 
As mentioned in the previous meeting, staff has determined several different types of permanent and 
temporary signs – which will be categorized in a matrix with regulations for each type.  This matrix 
will function as the regulating basis for all signs in the City of Oak Harbor.  There will be no 
significant changes in the number, size or duration of display, but in how that information is 
presented to the public.   
 
Staff encourages the Commissioners to view the graphics and make any comments or critiques – if a 
graphic doesn’t fully explain a sign type or concept, changes can be made easily at this stage.  
 
This is an ongoing process and Staff will be contacting community stakeholders such as the Chamber 
of Commerce and sign companies in the near future to review the draft matrix and give input into the 
concept.  Staff welcomes suggestions of other stakeholders that may be interested in the ordinance 
revision. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
This is purely an informational presentation. Staff encourages discussion of the proposed code and 
will incorporate concerns and comments into a final product, which will be presented to the Planning 
Commission at a future public hearing. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Graphics will be presented at the November 22, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting. 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 17 of 20



2017 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENTS 

 

 

 

Public Meeting 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 18 of 20



  

1 
 

 Date: November 22, 2016 
 Subject: 2017 Annual Comprehensive 

Plan Amendments, continued 
 
 
FROM: Cac Kamak, AICP, Senior Planner, Development Services Department 
  
 
PURPOSE 
This is a continuation of the agenda item presented at the October 25, 2016 Planning 
Commission meeting.  This is primarily intended to inform the Planning Commission on the 
initiation of the annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process and also discuss if there are 
policies/plans/studies that needs to be considered for the next amendment cycle.  The following 
information is a reiteration of the previous report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In accordance with OHMC 18.15, the City is initiating its annual Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Process, after the State required major update to the Comprehensive Plan was 
completed in June 2016.  The major update in 2016 reinstituted the vision for Oak Harbor and 
addressed all of the State required elements of the Comprehensive Plan.  Some of the major 
changes included a generalized land use map; identifying and delineating unique neighborhoods; 
and updates to the housing element, urban growth areas element and the transportation element.  
The goals and policies from various elements of the Comprehensive Plan were updated by 
simplifying the goals, removing inapplicable policies, and eliminating redundancy. 
 
Prior to the 2016 major update, the annual amendment process primarily included requests for 
land use changes, along with special studies and policy considerations such as the scenic view 
study.  With the major update, Staff expects a reduction in the applications for land use changes, 
since the adopted generalized land use map provides a way to rezone a property outside of the 
structured annual amendment process1. 
 
2017 ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
The Planning Commission can expect Staff to include the following amendments into the 2017 
preliminary docket: 
 
Capital Improvements Plan – As part of the annual amendment process, the Capital 
Improvements Plan will also be updated.  No major changes are anticipated, however there may 
be some minor adjustments made based on the budget, and minor changes to schedules. 
 
Economic Development Element – The Mayor and Administration are initiating a process to 
tackle economic development opportunities in Oak Harbor.  The process may potentially lead to 
some updates and changes to this element of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

                                                           
1 Under the generalized land use map, a land use designation is implemented by more than one zoning district, and 
therefore changes between zoning classification under the same land use designation can be done by the rezoning 
process outlined in OHMC 19.75.  

 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 19 of 20



  

2 
 

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan – The current plan needs to be updated since its last 
adoption in 2009.  Updating this plan will likely result in changes to this element of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Sponsored Amendments – None received till the drafting of this memo.  As mentioned earlier, 
the deadline for applications is December 1, 2016. 
 
PROCESS 
The annual amendment process for 2017 is initiated by publishing a notice in the newspaper with 
a call for applications.  This notice is published twice, once in October and once in November, 
and gives citizens an opportunity to request amendments.  As mentioned earlier, the primary 
requests prior to the 2016 major update were land use changes.  Although Staff expects a 
reduction in these types of applications, it is not out of the ordinary for a property owner to file 
for a sponsored amendment.  The deadline for applications is December 1, 2016. 
 
The City Council, Planning Commission, and the Development Services Director may also 
include amendments into the preliminary docket.  The Planning Commission will hold a public 
hearing in January on the preliminary docket and make a recommendation to the City Council.  
The City Council is required to adopt the annual amendments docket before the end of March 
2017. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The Planning Commission is not requested to take any action on this item at this time.  Staff will 
provide a brief update at the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None for this report.  [Previously referenced October 25, 2016: Call for applications notice 
published in the Whidbey News Times on October 22, 2016, and scheduled for second 
publication on November 12, 2016.] 

Planning Commission Meeting 11/22/2016 
Master Page 20 of 20


	PC Agenda 2016 1122 PENDING
	Sheet1

	PC Agenda 2016 1122 PRE-MEETING
	GMS-SC-Coupeville-10-19-17-Agenda
	Coupeville Recreation Hall, 901 NW Alexander Street, Coupeville, WA 98239
	Thursday, January 19, 2017, 6:15 – 9:15 p.m.
	Hosted by Island County
	Open Public Meetings Act and Introduction to the Public Records Act.  This training meets the requirements of RCW 42.30.205  requiring every member of a governing body to take Open Public Meetings Act training within 90 days of taking an official role...

	PC Agenda 2016 1122
	CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA
	PLANNING COMMISSION November 22, 2016
	1. ROLL CALL:  WASINGER   _______    FREEMAN   _______
	pIERCE   _______ MANN   _______          merriman  _______  Hovey   _______


	PC Meeting Minutes 2016 1025 DRAFT
	PC Meeting Minutes 2016 1109 MINUTES
	PC Staff Report Sign Code 2016 1122
	PC Staff Report 2017 Comp Plan Amendments  1122



